EVALUATING PAST PERFORMANCE RELEVANCY

Evaluating past performance is not accomplished through simple mathematical analysis of how many “exceptional, very good, satisfactory, or marginal ratings” were given to an offeror.  It requires a combined analysis of the quality of work, the recency of the work and the relevancy of the effort done in the past as it relates to future work.  The use of a tool like this relevancy grid is provided only as a starting point in helping with the issue of determining relevancy – probably the area that’s most often misunderstood in evaluating past performance.
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The headings on the top of this grid represent major areas to be performed on the contract being evaluated in the ongoing source selection.  These include those identified as mission capability subfactors (assessment of past performance is done at the subfactor level).  Since subfactors are selected to focus on discriminating aspects of evaluation, in some cases the subfactors may not encompass all the major work effort.  For example, in the grid above, maybe only performance in the area of demand processing was included as a subfactor; or if conducted as a performance-price tradeoff, no mission capability subfactors would be identified.  In either case, the team evaluating past performance wants to look into relevant performance for the significant areas of work contained in the SOW (parts management, shipping and training in this example.)

In this grid each member of a team is distinguished in some manner.  In this case the Prime is light gray, Sub A is gray and Sub B is bold italics.  This designation is also used across the top of the grid to indicate which member of the team is proposed to perform the specified work (prime, sub A or sub B) as indicated by the offeror in the proposal.  The left-hand column indicates past and present performance on contracts being evaluated to determine the confidence assessment.  The "x" indicates work done on past/present contracts is relevant to the work identified across the top of the grid. This information is obtained from questionnaires, PPAIS data and so forth.

The comment column provides a place to record, in a very summary fashion, helpful notes about specific aspects of performance the evaluation team will describe in more detail in their narrative discussion of the analysis and thought process used to reach the confidence assessment given. 

The rest of this document highlights questions, answers and cautions about summarizing relevancy information using a tool such as this relevancy grid.

1. What benefit does this grid provide?  The grid serves as a springboard to focus evaluation of past performance on work that is relevant to the effort proposed.  It also will help a team identify where a contractor team lacks performance experience.   Using a tool such as a relevancy grid can also help focus the evaluation towards those contracts that are relevant.  This will prevent expending time evaluating the quality of contracts with limited, or no relevance, when there is sufficient past performance on relevant work to make a confidence assessment. 

2. What are the dangers in using a grid like this?  Analysis of past performance includes integrated aspects of quality, relevancy and recency.  There is no formula to get to the confidence rating but there is a process to follow.  Teams should start by determining if work is recent (performance completed within the last 3 years) and then look at relevancy and finally consider quality.  What is relevant varies from one acquisition to another.  This grid alone does not get to a confidence rating as it does not weigh the importance of the work, quality of the work or recency of the work.  Most importantly, the grid alone does not provide a discussion of the integration of the past performance of team members into an overall team rating.
3. What about contracts that do not neatly fit into this grid – do they need to be considered at all?   The answer to this question is -- it depends.  For example, consider in the example above that, if in addition to the listed contracts, a group of janitorial service contracts were identified by the offeror for evaluation consideration.  This work may not seem related but the team can not immediately discount the contracts without first determining if anything in performance of janitorial work relates to the technical skill, knowledge or training needed for performance of work on this contract.  If the answer is “no” then further analysis of performance of work on the janitorial contracts will not be helpful to the team.  However, if there were some related technical or management skill that would apply, the contract would have some degree of relevance that the team would need to consider and document in reaching the final confidence assessment rating.  Relevant does not mean ”same” or “identical” – relevant means sufficiently similar to provide some indication of expected future performance.
4. What do you do when a member of the team is proposed to do work for which they have no prior experience?  Looking at this example above, SubA is proposed to conduct training but the information presented for evaluation does not indicate any relevant past performance in the area of training.  First, the team would want to ask the offeror if there is some relevant past performance in the area of training for SubA and/or key personnel within the SubA firm that could be evaluated to determine their ability to provide training support.  Maybe the firm actually did do training on the identified contracts and it just wasn’t apparent from the contract description that training was conducted.  Obtaining this kind of information can be done as a clarification.

5. So if a sub has never done the work they are proposed to do, that means the confidence assessment rating would be lowered right?  Not necessarily!   Notice in this example that the prime has experience in training – that would be relevant and should be used in the determination of confidence for the overall team.  However, if all the team members are doing work with which they are not familiar, even if other members had done the work, the confidence certainly could be less than a team in which the members are performing work in areas in which they do have experience.  For example, if a prime has never managed any subcontractors at all and only done work of a very small magnitude, that is a concern that may not be overcome by the experience of the subs in managing contracts and subcontractors. 

6. What happens when no team member has experience in a certain area?  Remember relevant means similar, not the same.  As discussed above, first see if the work would use the same kind of technical or management skill that the offeror team has performed in other areas of effort.  If the skills are similar, the performance should be considered to be at least minimally relevant.  Think of the skills needed in plumbing work on apartment complexes.  Work in this area of plumbing would be relevant to work on sprinkler systems for a golf course.  Even though apartments and golf courses are different, plumbing skills needed for both are similar.
7. What if there is no connection at all to the work to be accomplished on my contract?  If there really is a “hole” in relevancy, the question that needs to be posed is, “How critical is the missing piece to the overall effort?”  Consider a proposed team that has done work in the area of assembling microchip components for rocket systems and munitions warheads.  They are bidding on a consolidated contract that includes assembling satellites and delivering mail.  Clearly the critical work is the satellite part.  Would lack of experience in delivery of mail really be a big concern?  Should this lack of experience lower the confidence rating?  The answer is no – if the team can assemble rockets and munitions, they will be able to do low “tech” work like mail delivery.  But, what if it was the other way around?  If all the experience of this team was in mail delivery and they had no experience relevant to satellite assembly, that would be of great concern?  Delivering mail is far less technical than assembling rockets.  Even if satellite assembly were a very small part of the contract work, the criticality of the effort would be such that this lack of experience would lead to a lower confidence assessment rating.  

8. What about relevancy and quality?  The best a team can hope for is recent, relevant, high quality work experience.  If the quality were only satisfactory on relevant work our confidence is not as high as it would be if the performance in the past had been very good or exceptional.  But what about when quality is high and the relevancy is minimal or lacking (like the satellite and mail service example)?  In that case we would have doubt about performance, not because of the quality of the past work, but because of the relevancy.  Exceptional work in mail service doesn’t yield high confidence in the work that also includes satellite assembly.

9. What about recency?  That is the third ingredient to consider.  More recent performance should be considered a better indicator of future performance than less recent effort.  If the quality of relevant work has improved, that needs to be factored into the decision.  Likewise, if the quality of performance has not been as good in more recent work this is also necessary to consider in the analysis

10. So this grid is just a starting point?  Yes!  The use of any grid or table to help organize material – it doesn’t do the thinking for you.  In the end a combination of the three components of past performance evaluation – recency, relevancy and quality – must be conducted to fairly rate the offerors and to get the best value for the government.
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